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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Elpis Ventures Private Limited
Report on the Standalone financial statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Elpis Ventures Private Limited
(‘the Company’), which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, the standalone
statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes
in equity and the standalone statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the standalone
financial statements including summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (herein after referred to as “standalone financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020 its profit and
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
Standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Recoverability of loans/financial instruments to
fellow subsidiaries.

The Company has extended loans/financial
instruments to fellow subsidiaries. These are
assessed for recoverability at each period end.

Due to the nature of the business in the real estate
industry, the Company is exposed to heightened
risk in respect of the recoverability of the
loans/financial instruments granted to the
aforementioned parties. In addition to nature of
business, there is also significant judgment
involved as to the recoverability of the working
capital and project specific loans/financial
instruments.  This  depends  on property
developments projects being completed over the
time period specified in agreements.

We have identified measurement of loans/financial
instruments to fellow subsidiaries as key audit
matter because recoverability assessment involves
Company’s significant judgment and estimate.

Recoverability of loans/financial instruments to
fellow subsidiaries.

Our procedure included: _ _

e Evaluating the design and 1p1plenlentatlon
and testing operating effectiveness of key
internal controls placed around the
impairment assessment process of the

recoverability —of  the loans/financial
instruments.
e Assessing the net worth of fellow

subsidiaries on the basis of latest available
financial statements.

e Assessing the controls for grant of new
loans/financial instruments and sighting the
Board approvals obtained. We have tested
Company’s assessment of the
recoverability —of the loans/financial
instruments. These projections are based on

underlying property development
appraisals.
e Tracking loans/financial  instruments

advanced / repaid during the year to bank
statement.

e Obtaining independent confirmations to
assess completeness and existence of
loans/financial instruments and advances

given to fellow subsidiaries as on March |
31, 2020. \

Other Information

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not
include the standalone financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this-other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard,/< >~ <,
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Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

V2R
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures in the standalone financial statements made by the Management and
Board of Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would

pic sonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1

- As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Cent'ral
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give

in the ‘Annexure A’, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the

extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(U8)

(2) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

(¢) The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone statement of
cash flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued there under;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure
B”; and

- With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has no pending litigations;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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4. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section 197 (16) of the Act, We
report that:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration pald.by
the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under
section 197 of the Act; and the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
section 197 (16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

For Chatterjee & Chatterjee
Chartered Accountants
ICAI firm registration no: 001109C  _

H RED
GauraV Agrawal o )
Partner ety
Membership no: 403788 DEL

UDIN: 20403788 AAAACP1338

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 31, 2020
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date.

ii.

1ii.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets including investment properties and
capital work in progress.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets
including investment properties by which the fixed assets including investment properties
are verified by the management according to the phased programme designed to cover all
the items over a period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets.

. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of the immovable properties
are held in the name of the Company.

The Company does not have inventory accordingly, the provision of paragraph 3 (ii) of the
Order are not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.

The Company has granted unsecured loans to one company covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured, to firms or other parties covered in the register required to be
maintained under section 189 of the Act.

a.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the rate of interest and other terms
and conditions of unsecured loans granted by the Company to the company covered in the
register required to be maintained under section 189 of the Act are not, prima facie,
prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, the unsecured loans granted to the company and the interest
thereon are repayable on demand. The borrowers have been regular in payment of principal
and interest as demanded.

There are no overdue amounts of more than 90 days in respect of the unsecured loans
granted to the Company by the Company.




CHATTERJEE & CHATTERJEE
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

1v.

vi.

Vil.

viii.

n to us, and based on the
f Section 185
guarantees

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations give
audit procedures conducted by us, the Company has complied with the provision 0
and 186 of the Act, with respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing
and securities, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted deposits from the public covered by the provisions of section 73
to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly the provisions of paragraph 3 (V) of the Order
are not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the
rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of the cost records, under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified
accounts and records have been made and maintained.

a. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of
the Company examined by us, the company is regular in depositing the undisputed
statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, GST,
Custom Duty, GST, Value Added Tax, Service Tax and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities in India.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of
the company examined by us, there are no dues of Income Tax, GST, Service Tax and
Customs Duty which have not been deposited on account of any disputes.

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted during the year in repayment of dues to debenture holders. The Company does not
have any loans or borrowings from banks, financial institutions and government during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation give to us, the Company has
utilized the monies raised by way of debt instruments in nature of non-convertible debentures
for the purpose for which debentures were raised. The Company has not obtained any term loan

during the year.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported
during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the management.
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Xi.

Xii.

Xiil.

X1v.

XV.

XVI.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the
current year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. The remuneration
paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under section 197 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
company. Accordingly, provisions of paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has entered into
transactions with the related parties in compliance with the sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The
details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial
statements as required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified under section 133 of the Act.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the
directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order are not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the provisions of Section 45-1A
of the Reserve bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

For Chatterjee & Chatterjee
Chartered Accountants
ICAI firm registration no: 001109C -

Gaurav Agrawal

Partner

!‘J»~; Cl .‘T\:, 3
NV e

WDEL

Membership no: 403788
UDIN: 20403788AAAACP1338

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 31,2020
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Elpis
Ventures Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively
as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants Of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with respect to
standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statement. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with respect to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with respect to standalone financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of

internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
/i \C&
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icluding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

For Chatterjee & Chatterjee
Chartered Accountants
ICAI firm registration no: 001 109C

-g%‘g?;;él

Partner NAET e
Membership no: 403788
UDIN: 20403788AAAACP1338

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 31, 2020



ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U45309KA2019PTC124570

Balance sheet as at March 31, 2020

(Rs. in millions)

h

As at

Notes J1-Mar-20

Assets
Non- current assets
Investment property

R ——————————————————————————————————————————

_ 4.1
Capital wmk-in-pmgress 42 s
Financial assets | kR
Investments 5 0.00)
Loans f 107.50
Assets for curment tax (net) ﬂ. |5
7,276.94
Current assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9 14.72
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 5 I IE-{I{J
Other current financial assets 7 () 38
Other current assets 8 6.38
. 139.48
Total assets 7.416.42
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 10 600.01
Other equity 11 (2.05)
Total equity 59"?-96
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilines
Bormrowings 12 6.510.00
Other non-current financial liabilities 304.20
6,814.20
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables/Capital creditors
1) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 14 3.77
and small enterpnses |
Other current liabilities 15 0.49
. 4.26
Total liabilities 6,818.46
Total equity and liabilities 7.416.42
Summary of significant accounting policies 1.2

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Chatterjee & Chatterjee —
Chartered Accountants -

ICALGiy registration number: /Eiﬁ’.l 19c
A i

Craurav Agrawal i
Partner L v

Membership No.. 40378¥ OB

Place: New Delha
Date . July 31, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

XL

Amit Bhushan
Director
DIN 01910476

Aparna Goel
Director
DIN: 00142961

Place: New Delhi
Date : July 31, 2020

Huddy, N

Company Secretary

Place: New Delhi
Date : July 31, 2020

Scanned with CamScanner



ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U45309KA2019PTC124570

Statement of profit and loss for the period from May 23, 2019 to March 31,2020

(Rs. in millions)
For the period from
Notes May 23, 2019 to

e ——————————————————— March 31, 2020
Finance income

Total income . ::g
Expenses
Finance costs
Sts | 8

Other expenses 17 : gg
Total expenses 3.55
Loss before tax (2.05)
Tax expenses 13 | |

Current tax

Income tax expense

Loss for the period (2.05)
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in -
subsequent periods:
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax -
Total comprehensive income for the period (2.05)
I —— — e ———————————————————————————————
Earnings per equity share (in Rs.) [nominal value of Rs. 10]

Basic and Diluted 21 (0.00)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For Chatterjee & Chatterjee For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
ICAI firm registration number: 001109C _—==""

._I..I'::;; : | -
Gaurav Agrawal " fﬂ" ”;" parna Goel Amit Bhushan
Partner WOEL -_#;:f""’ irector Director
Membership No.: 403788 — DIN: 00142961 DIN: 01910476
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date : July 31, 2020 Date : July 31, 2020 Date : July 31, 2020

Company Secretary

Scanned with CamScanner



ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U45309KA2019PTC124570

Statement of changes in equity for the period from May 23, 2019 to March 31, 2020

a. Equity share capital

No of Shares in Amount in
million Rs. million
lh—-——_m___
Equity shares of Rs, 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
At April 1, 2019 . -
At March 31, 2020 60.00 600.01

b. Other equity
For the year ended March 31, 2020

Rs. in millions

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
Reserves and Surplus Total
Capital Securities Retained
Redemption premium earnings
Reserve accounti
B NI i G372 (Mo I R e =2 e : :
Loss for the period - . (2.05) (2.05)
At March 31, 2020 - § (2.05) (2.05)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For Chatterjee & Chatterjee

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants

s ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

Bk

1-

ICAI firm registration number: 001 169C © < OO,

Gaurav Agrawal

parna Goel Amit Bhushan
Partner _ NN A /7 irector Director
Membership No.: 403788 RN “ﬁf}; DIN: 00142961 DIN: 01910476
Place: New Delhi Place: New Dell Place: New Delhi
Date : July 31, 2020 Date : July 31, 2020 Date : July 31, 2020
Barsha Agarwal
Company Secretary

Scanned with CamScanner



ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U45309KA2019PTC124570

Statement of Cash Flows for the period from May 23, 2019 to March 31, 2020

(Rs. in millions)

31-Mar-20
Operating activities
Loss before tax (2.05)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Finance income (including fair value change in financial instruments) (1.50)
Finance costs (including fair value change in financial instruments) 1.60
Working capital adjustments:
(Increase)/ decrease in other financial assets (0.38)
(Increase)/ decrease in other assels (6.38)
Increase/ (decrease) in other non-current financial liabilities 304.20
Increase/ (decrease) in other non-financial liabilities 0.49
Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables 3.7
299.75
Income tax paid (net of refund) (0.15)
Net cash flows from/ (used in) operating activities (A) 299.60
Investing activities
Purchase of property. plant and equipment & investment property (7,169.29)
Inter corporate deposits made during the year (107.50)
Inter corporate deposits received during the year 25.00
Inter corporate deposits repaid to the related party during the year (25.00)
Investment in fixed deposits (118.00)
Investment in equity instruments (0.00)
Interest received 1.50
Net cash flows from/ (used in) investing activities (B) (7,393.29)
Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital 600.01
Proceeds from issue of debentures 6.510.00
Interest paid (gross) (1.60)
Net cash flows from/ (used in) financing activities (C) 7,108.41
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 14.72
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 9) -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 9) 14.72

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Chatterjee & Chatterjee
Chartered Accountants e
ICAI firm registration number: 001 ]ﬂ‘)p :

| . ;-..‘
rl -I I.- - .'l
i W \
[ L ’JI’ ; =N - | ey
T - - | IPJ
# II.I_ I. 'u'arr.-..llll.'i-"f.”.- -I .-.'

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

AT

-

Gaurav Agrawal o Pl Aparna G Amit Bhushan
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ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U45309KA2019PTC124570
Notes to the financial statements for the period from May 23, 2019 to March 31, 2020

I Corporate Information

Elpis Ventures Private Limited ("the Company™) was incorporated on May 23, 2019 The Company is engaged in carrying on the business of real estate
development, leasing and related services

The Company is a private limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered ofTice at Bengaluru, Karnataka, India

The financial statements have heen authorised for issuance by the Company's Board of Directors on July 31, 2020

2  Significant accounting policies

2.1n

2.1b

2.2

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time)

The financial siatements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at
fair value

» Cenain financial assets and lisbilities mensured al fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments)
Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

This is the first year of incorporation of the Company

Ind AS 116 Leases )
On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate AfTairs (MCA) has notified Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 116, Leases

Effective Apnl 1, 2019, the Company has applied Ind AS 116 which sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise mos! leases on the balance sheet Ind AS 116 replaces Ind AS 17 Leases. The Company has
applied the modified retrospective method to all lease contracts existing on Apnl 01, 2019. Accordingly, the comparatives have not been
retrospectively adjusted The impact on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 for the year ended March 31, 2020 is not significant

Ind AS 116 requires extensive disclosures However, considering that the application did not have impact on the Company, no further disclosure has
been made.

Summary of significant accounting policies
a) Revenue recognition

i Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases (excluding variable rental income) is recognized in the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease lock in period including lease income on fair value of refundable security deposits. Rental income under
operating leases having variable rental income is recognized as per the terms of the contract. Revenue in excess of billings on rental
contracts is recorded as unbilled receivables and is included in other current financial assets

Alzo refer note 2.2(r) below

ii Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue from contracis with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services The Company has generally
concluded that it is the principal in its revenue ammangements because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to
the customer. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts, credits, concessions
and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. The Company presents revenue from contracts with customers net of
indirect taxes in its statement of profit and loss.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the
transaction price needs 1o be allocated. In determining the transaction price, the Company considers the effects of vaniable consideration, the
existence of significant financing components, non cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any)

In respect of the maintenance and marketing services, these services represent a senes of daily services that are individually sansfied over
ume because the tenants simultaneously receive and consume the benefits provided by the Company. The Company applies the nme elapsed
method o measure progress Operation, maintenance, ulilities, parking fees and other fees receivable for services rendered are recognized
on a gross basis as and when the services are rendered as per the terms of the contract, except utilities which have been netted off against the
EXpenses

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts Contract assets are classified as unbilled
receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional nght 1o receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per
contractual terms

Uneamed and deferred revenue (“contract liability” ) is recognised when there is billings in excess of revenues

ii.. Dividend income
Revenue is recognised when the shareholders’ or unit holders’ nght 1o receive payment is established, which is generally when shareholders
approve the dividend

iv, Interest income
Interest income, including income arising from other financial instruments, i1s recognised using the effective interest rate method Interest on

delayed payment by customers are accounted when reasonable certainty of collection is established

b) Property, plant and egquipment
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ELFIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U45309KA2019PTCI124570
Noies to the Minancial statemenis for the period from May 23, 2019 1o March 31, 2020

cl

d)

)

N

Property, plant & equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition/construction, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any
The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset 10 its working
condition for the intended use and initial estimate of decommissioning, restoring and similar liabilities Each part of an item of property, plant
and equipment with a cost thal is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is deprecialed separately This applies mainly to components
for machinery When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately
based on their specific useful lives Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant
and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as

incurred
Subsequent expenditure related 1o an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from
the existing asset beyond iis previously assessed siandard of performance

Bomowing costs directly attributable 1o scquisition of property, plant and equipmeni which take substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use are also included 1o the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be pul 1o use

An item of property, plant and equipmeni and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the nel
disposal proceeds and the carryving amount of the asset) is included in the income siatement when the Property, plant and equipment is

derecognised

Expenditure directly relating 1o construction activity is capitalised Indirect expenditure incurred during construction ptril.'n:! s cn]flituhud 1o the
extent 10 which the expenditure is indirectly related to construction or is incidental thereto Other indirect expenditure (including borrowing
costs) incurred during the construction period which is not related to the construction activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the statement

Cost of assets not ready for use ai the balance sheet date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding al each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances
under other non-current assels

Invesiment properties

Investment propertics are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs Subsequent 10 initial recognition, investmeni properties are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, il any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing paris and borrowing costs for long-term consiruction projects if the recognition cniteria are met Whe_n
significant parts of the investmeni property are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their
specific useful lives All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incu rred

Though the Company measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the
notes Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer

Investment properties are de-recognized either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefit is expected from their disposal The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset 15

recognized in profit or loss in the period of de-recognition
Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment and Invesiment property

Depreciation is calculated on a written down value basis using the following useful lives prescribed under Schedule I, except where specified

Particulars Useful lives estimated by the management
{in years)

Buldings &0
Plant and machinery

i General plam and machinery 15
Fumniture and fixtures 10
Computers 3
Vehicles * 6

*For these class of assets, based on Management's intemnal technical assessment, the Management believes that the useful lives as given above
best represent the period over which Management expects lo use these assets. Hence, the useful lives for these assels is different from the useful

lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule 11 of the Act

Freehold land is not depreciated

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plam and equipment and invesiment property are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate

Impairment of non Mnancial assets

The Company assesses, al each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired If any indication exists, or when
annual impairmem testing for an assel is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount An asset’s re::nvem?-le amuu:_u 15 the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the assel is considered impaired and is wrinten down 1o its

recoverable amount

in use. the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
of money and the risks specific to the asset In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
i5 used These calculanons are

In assessing value

market assessments of the ime value . . . |
wransactions are taken into account If no such transactions can be identified, an appropnate valuation model

corroborated by valuation multples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss After impairment, depreciation is

provided on the revised carrying amouni of the assel over its remaining useful life

Impairment of financial assels
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ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U45309KA2019PTC124570

Notes 1o the linancial siatements for the period from May 23, 2019 to March 31, 2020

(4]

The Company assesses at each dale of balance sheel whether a financial asseil or a group of financiol assets is impaired Ind AS 109 requires
expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognises lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or
all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial nssets, expected credit losses are measured at an
amount equal to the 12-month expecied credit losses or at an amount equal 1o the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the

Cwrrent versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification An asset is treated as current when
inis

- Expected 1o be realised or intended 1o be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months afler the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used 1o settle n linbility for at least twelve months afler the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability 15 current when

- 115 expected to be sentled in normal operating cycle

= 1t is held pnmanly for the purpose of rrading

- It 15 due 10 be settled within twelve months after the reporting peniod, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-curment assels and liabilities

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents The Company
has idennfied twelve months as its operating cycle.

This space is mtentionally leff blank
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ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U45309KA2019PTC 124570

Notes 1o the Mnancial siatements

h)

for the period from May 23, 2019 1o March 3, 2020

Financial instrumenis

A financial instrument is any coniract that gi : 2
- @ives nse o a financial asset of one ent; ial liabili -
instrument of another entity e entity and a financial liability or equity

Financial assers
nif '

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profil or loss,

::l:lnmp costs thal are |':_|rihmnhlc 1o the. acquisition of the financial asset Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
in a ume frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i ¢ , the
date that the Company commits 1o purchase or sell the asset |

Subsequen| measuremeny

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four calegories
Debt instruments at amontised cost
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
Dchl instruments and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (F VTPL)
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVYTOCI)

Debt instruments al amortised cost

A “debt in:h'grncnl‘ 15 measured at the amontised cost if both the following conditions are met
a) :Iw asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash Nows,
an

l..'-} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are sol ely paymenis of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding

T‘hjs calegory -is_'lhe.rnusi relevant to the Company  Afier initial measurement, such financial assels are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and

!'-l:ﬂ or costs that are an integral pan of the EIR The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the profit or loss This calegory generally applies 1o trade and other receivables

Debt instrument st FVTOCI

A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOC! if both of the following criteria are met

a) The objective of the business mode! is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL 15 a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does nol meet the critenia for categorization as al amortized cost

or as FVTOCL, is classified as at FVTPL Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recogmzed n the stalement of profit and loss

In addinon, the Company may elect 1o designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL

However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as *accounting
mismaich’) The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial asseis) is primarily derecognised
when

> The nghts to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

» The Company has wransferred its rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without matenal delay to a third party under a 'pass-through’ arrangement, and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the

risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset

When the Company has wransferred its nights to receive cash flows from an assei or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if
and 1o what extent il has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the assel, nor ransferred control of the assel, the Company continues 1o recogmse Lhe ransferred asset to the extent of the

Company’s continuing involvement In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained

Financial liabilities
Initial r its i 1

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities ai fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as
payables, as appropnate

The Company’s financial liabilities include rade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafls

b enl rement
The measurement of financial hiabilites depends on their classification, as described below

L

]

- kuang.‘ilnre
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ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U4S309KAZ019PTC124570
MNotes to the financial statemenis for the period from May 23, 2019 10 March 31, 2020

1)

k)

Financial linbilities at fir value throngh profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fir value through profit or loss include financial linbilities held for trading and financinl liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial linbilities are classified as held for
wrading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on linbilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. Afler initial recognition, interesi-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured al
amortised cost using the EIR method Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the linbilities are derecognised as well as through
the EIR amortisation process

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and lees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR
The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the stalement of profit and loss

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent linbilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid Trade
and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is due within 12 months afler reporiing period For trade and other
pavables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short malurity of these
msimments

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
linbility is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability The
difference in the respective camrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss

Fair value measnrement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as invesiments at fair value at cach balance sheet date

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either

» In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
B In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial stalements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

» Level 1| — Quoted (unadjusted) markel prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

> Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable

B Level 3 — Valuaton techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred berween levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categonsation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporung penod

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly atributable to acquisition/ construction of qualifying assets are capitalised until the time all substantial activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for their intended use are complete A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period
of ime to get ready for its intended use/ sale All other borrowing costs not eligible for inventonsation/ capitalisation are charged to statement of
profit and loss

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow siatement comprise cash al bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an onginal

maturity of three months or less , which are subject to an insignificant nisk of changes in value, net of outstanding bank overdrafis as they are
considered an inegral part of the Company's cash management

Fhus space 1 steniionally fefi blank
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ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U45309KA2019PTC124570

Notes to the financial statements for the period from May 23, 2019 to March 31, 2020

1)

n)

Retirement and other employee benefits

Showt ferm employee benefits

All employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the services are classified as short term employee benefits, which

include benefits like salaries, short term compensated absences, performance incentives, elc and are recognised as expense in the period in
which the employee renders the related service

D fined-contribution plang

The Company has defined contribution plans (where Company pays pre-defined amounts and does not have any legal or informal obligation to

pay additional sums) for post employment benefits (viz , provident fund), and the Company’s contributions thereto are charged to the statement
of profit and loss every vear

Diefined-benefir plans

The Company has a defined benefit plan (viz , Gratuity) for employees, the liability for which is determined on the basis of valualion carried out
by an independent actuary (under projected unit credit method) at the balance sheet daie

(dther long term emplovee benefits |

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be ulilized within the next 12 months, is treated as shori-term employee benefit The Company
measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects lo pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has
accumulated at the reporting date

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability, are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a cormesponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI
i the period in which they occur Remeasurements are not reclassified 1o statement of profit or loss in subsequent periods

The Company treats accumulated leave expecied 1o be carmed forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement
purposes Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projecied unit credit method at the

vear-end. The Company presents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer

its settlement for twelve months afler the reporting date Actuarial gains/ losses are immediately taken 1o statement of profit and loss and are not
deferred

Provisions

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as result of past event and it is probable that an
outflow of embodying economic benefits of resources will be required Lo settle a reliably assessable obligation. Provisions are determined based
on best esnmate required to settle each obligation at each balance sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are

discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where

there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but
discloses its existence in the financial statements

Earnings per share

Basic earnings / (loss) per share is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) atiributable to equity shareholders for the year by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings
earning / (loss) per share and also the weighted AVerage n
potential equity shares

/ (loss) per share comprises the weighted average shares considered for deriving basic
umber of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive

Diluuve potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the year, unless they have been issued at a

. later date. In computing
diluted eamnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and which either reduce eaming per share or increase loss per share are
included

This space is wientionally left blank
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Notes to the financial statements lor the period from May 23, 2009 to March 31, 2020

rl

q)

5)

Taxes

Tax expense compnses of current and deferred tax

(urrent incomye iy

Current income 1ax is mensured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax suthorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act The tax
rates and tax laws used 1o compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date Current income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity) Current
ax items are recognised in correlation 1o the underlying transaction either in OC1 or directly in equily

Deferred income Ky

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of asseis and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary difTerences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the exient that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences. and the carry forward of unused 1ax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all 1axable temporary difTerences, except

= When the deferred tax anses from the initial recognition of goodwill or an assel or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the nme of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

The carmying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised 1o the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured al the lax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted al the reporting date

Mimmum Alternatve Tax (MAT) may become payable when the taxable profit is lower than the book profit Taxes paid under MAT are
available as a set off against regular corporate tax payable in subsequent years, as per the provisions of Income Tax Act MAT paid in a year is
charged 1o the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there
15 comvincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income 1ax during the specified period, i.e, the period for which MAT credit is
allowed 1o be camed forward In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Accounang for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Altemative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of
credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as "MAT Credit Entilement ™ The Company reviews the “MAT credil entillement” asset at

each reporting date and writes down the assel to the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during
the specified period

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the
reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the exchange rate
prevailing a1 the reporung date Mon-monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are
reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting

monetary items of Company at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial
statements, are recognised as income or as expenses in the year in which they anse

Leases

Where the Company is lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases
Assets subject 1o operating leases are included under Investment property Lease income from operating lease is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease lock in period including lease income on fair value of refundable security deposits. Costs, including depreciation,

are recogmized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs, etc are recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease lock in period in the statement of profit and loss

Cash dividend to equity holders of the Company

The Company recognises a liability 1o make cash distributions 10 equity holders of the Company when the distribution is authorised and the
distnibution is no longer at the discretion of the Company Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the
shareholders and intenm dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company's Board of Directors

This space 15 adentionally left blank
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3

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires management lo make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of revenues, expenses, assels and liahilities and the accompanying disclosures, and

the disclosure of contingent liabilities Uncertninty about these assumplions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carmang amount of assets o1 liabilities afTected in future periods

a)

b)

Judgements

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recogmsed in the financial statements

The Company has entered into commercial property leases on its investment properties The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the
terms and conditions of the amangements such as the lease term nol constituting a substantial portion of the economic life of the commercial propery,
that it retains all the significant nsks and rewards of ownership of these properties and so accounts for the contracts as operating leases

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimalion uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing
a matenal adjustment 1o the caming amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below The Company based its
assumphons and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur

iy Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised Significant management judgement is required lo determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of furure 1axable profits together with future tax planning strategies

iil  Fair valoe measurement of Minancial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values Judgements
include consideratons of inputs such as liquidity nsk, credit sk and volatility Changes in assumptions aboul these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments See Note 32 for further disclosures

iil} Valuanon of Investment property

Impairment exists when the carrying value of investment property exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and s value in use The fair value of investment property is determined by an independent valuation specialist using recognised
valuanon techniques and the principles of Ind AS 113 Fair Value Measurement The fair value of investment property is based on discounted
cash flows The fair value is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth
rate used for exmapolaton purposes The inputs 1o these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this 1s not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values The significant methods used by the specialist in estimating the fair value
of investment property are set oul in Note 4 |

n) Lease rental income
Lease revenue is recognized, in accordance with the terms of lease contracts over the lease term on a straight line basis. With regard to lease
agreements based on the revenue share which are not subject to straight lining, the Company recognises the rental income based on the
estmated sales of the customers based on past rends and expectations Any changes in the estimated sales of the customers could affect the
revenue recogrused in profit and loss account
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ELFIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U45309KA2019PTC 124570

Notes to the financial statements for the period from May 23, 2019 to March 31, 2020

4.1

4.2

Investment property

(Rs. in millions)

Other assets forming part of Building

Freehold
lh“: Bulldings Computers Pl Sad FRERMuS Total

e l'l'lﬂtllil'll!l_': and flixtures

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2019 - "

Addinons 6,848 00 6,848 00
Disposals " < . ’ . .
At 31 March 2020 6,848.00 - - - - 6,848.00

Depreciation and impairment

Charge for the year

Dhsposals

At 1 April 2019 : . : 2
Charge for the yvear

Disposals .
At 31 March 2020 - g - 2 ;

Net Book value
At 1 April 2019 : . e :

At31 March 2020 6,848.00 - - - - 6,848.00
At 31 March 2020 6,848.00 - - - - 6,848.00

Information regarding income and expenditure of investment property
{Rs. in millions)
31-Mar-20

Rental income denved from investment properties =

Direct operating expenses (including repawrs and maintenance) generating rental

Income

Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) that did not -
generate rental mcome

Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation and indirect -
expenses

Less - Depreciation

Fmﬁﬂhﬂl Ir‘iﬂlE from investment EmEtrﬂH before indirect expenses -

The Company s mvestment propertes consist of one separate land parcel in India

As at 31 March 2020, the farr values of the properties are Rs.7,239 millions. These valuations are based on valuations performed by
CBRE Valuation & Adwvisory services, an accredited independent valuer CBRE Valuation & Adwisory services, 1s a specialist in
valuing these types of investment properties. A valuation model in accordance with guidelines land out i the Apprasal and
Valuation Manual pubhished by the Roval Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS), UK

Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation on investment properties:

The value of the land component at the subject property has been ascertained using Direct Companson Approach

Subject Property Area(sqm) Market YValue
Plot 77420 : 7,239.00
Total 77420 1,239,

Asset under construction
Capital work 1n progress ("CWIP") as at 31 March 2020 compnses of expenditure for the property n the course of construction and

borrowing costs Total amount of CWIP 15 Rs 321 29 millions The amount of borrowing costs capitahised duning the penod March
31, 20205 Rs 302 70 milhions The rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation was 14 07%
which 15 the effective rate of the borrowings
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ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U4SIN9KAZ0NIPTC 124570
Notes to the Minancial statements for the period from May 23, 2009 1o March 3, 2020

5 Investiments

(K. In millions)
M-Mar-20

MNon-current investmenis:

Investments carried at fair valoe through profit and loss

Investment in equity instruments

1 equity share in Thanes Ventures Limited (formerly known as TRIF 0.0
Real Estate & Development Limited and | equuty share in Alena

Ventures Limnied (formerhy known as TRIL Amntsar Projects Limited)

Total investmenis 0.00

reregate amount of unquoted invesiments LALL
Aggregale amount of impairment in value of investments

6 Loans
{Rs. in millions)
Non-current
= _3I-Mar-20 _
Inter-corporale deposit
Unsecured. considened pood 107.50

__107.50

T Onher Minancial assets
{Rs. in millions)
Current Mon-Current
Ji-Mar-20 3-Mar-20 _

Others
Inierest accrued on fixed deposits 0.38 -
038 - -

B Orther assets
(Rs. in millions )

Curreni Mon-Current
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-20

Advances receivable in cash or kind
Unsecured. considered good 511 -
Onhers
Prepad expenses 002 a
Balances with statuion/ government authontes 1.25 .

638 5

9  Cash and bank balances

{Rs. in millions)
Current Non-Current

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-20
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- On curren! accounts 14.72 -
Cash on hand _ . .
14.72 -

Bank balance other than cash and cash
equivalents
- Deposits with matunty for less than |12 months 118 (0

118.00 u

132,72 -

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

(Rs. In millions)
31-Mar-20
Holances with hanks
- O currenl accounls 1472
{ ash on hand =
14.72
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ELFIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U45309KA2019PTC124570

MNotes to the financial statements for the period from May 23, 2019 to March 31, 2020

10 Share Capital

Authorised shares
6,00,01,000 Ordimary equity shares of Rs 10 each

600 0]
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
6.00,01,000 Ordinary equity shares of Rs 10 each G00.01
Total 1ssued. subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 600.01

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting year

31-Mar-20

No of shares  Rs. in millions
— —— m

Ordinary equity shares

At the beginning of the vear - -
Issued during the year 60,001,000 60001
Outstanding at the end of the year 60,001,000 600.01

h

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has Ordmary equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share Ordinary equity share holder of
equity share 1s entitled 10 one vote per share held The dividend if any proposed by the Board of Directors is subject
to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In

the event of liqudanon, each class of the equity shareholders are ehgible to receive the remaining assets of the
Company after distnbunon of all preferential amounts if any, in proportion to therr shareholding

() Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

31-Mar-20
No of Shares Holding
e . =it ptrﬂntlit =izl
Ordinary equity shares
Monbus Holdings Pte Limned 60,000,999 100%
Dhanlaxm Infrastructure Pvt Lid ! 0%

MNote:

1) As per records of the Company, mcluding its register of shareholders/ members and other declaration received

from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above sharcholding represent both legal and beneficial
ownership of shares

1) 6,00,01,000 equity shares are held by the holding company, Moeribus Holdings Pte Ltd , and their nominees

d) Aggregate number and class of shares bought back for the period of 5 years immediately preceding the
balance sheet date:

Particulars Aggregate No. of Shares

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

31-Mar-15

Ordinary Equity Share )

Other equity

31-Mar-20

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Balance at the beginming of the year
Profit for the year (2.05)
Crther comprehensive income
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss (2.05)

Total other equity _ (2.05)
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ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U45309KA2019PTC124570

Notes to the financial statements for the period from May 23, 2019 to March 31, 2020

12 Borrowings

(Rs. in millions)

- e e — R J1-Mar-20

Non-current borrowings

Unsecured debentures

6.510 Listed & tradable redeemable non-converiible debentures of Rs. | million each 6,510.00

6,510.00

Total non-current borrowings

6,510.00

Note:

The Company had issued 6,510 unsecured redeemable non-convertible debentures ( NCD') of Rs. 1,000,000 each in tranches. 2410
NCD were alloted on November 21, 2019 and were listed on BSE Limited (‘'BSE') on December 10, 2019 and 4.100 NCD were
alloted on December 6, 2019 and were listed on BSE Limited ('BSE") on December 27, 2019,

The coupon shall be calculated at the rate of 13% per anum on the debentues upto 31,2024 and at the rate 15% from Apnil 01, 2024
onwards

No nterest coupon shall be payable on the NCD till 31,2024,

From Apnl 1,2024 onwards, the company shall pay interest (including accumulated interest) only on availability of sufficient cash
flows ( as determined by the Board of Directors) (i.e on a pay-when-able basis). The adequacy of cash flow for payment of interest

shall be determined during March of every financial year by considering the financial position of the company. The company shall
neither accure nor pay interest in the absence of sufficient cash flows.

The Company may choose to prepay the debentures or any portion thereof by excercising an option ('Prepayment Option™) any time
after the first anniversary from the date of issue of the debentures.

The price payable on exercise of the prepayment option shall be detemined at the discretion of the comany, taking into consideration
the financial postion, then prevailing interest rate, access to alternate funds, etc.

The debentures shall have a right but not an obligation to tender their debentures (in whole or part) pursuant to the prepayment option
extended by the Company.

The proceeds of issue is utilised for the acquisition of identified land parcels situated in Thane , Maharastra.
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ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U45309KA2019PTC124570
Notes to the financial statements for the period from May 23, 2019 to March 31, 2020

13 Income tax

a) Tax expenses
The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2020 is:

(Rs. in millions)
J1-Mar-20

Accounting loss before income tax (2.05)
Tax on accounting profit at statutory income tax rate 27.82% :
Adjustments in respect of brought forward unabsorbed depreciation

14 Trade payables
(Rs. in millions)

31-Mar-20
Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 27) -
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 3.77
3.77

Terms and conditions of the above financial habilities:
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 to 60 day terms.
For explanations on the Company’s credit risk management processes, refer to note 24.

15 Other liabilities
(Rs. in millions)
31-Mar-20

Payable towards statutory dues 0.49

0.49

Breakup of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
(Rs. in millions)

31-Mar-20
Borrowings (refer note 12) 6.510.00
Trade payables (refer note 14) 377
Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 6,513.77
m -
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ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U4S309KA2019PTC124570

Notes to the financial statements for the period from May 23, 2019 to March 31, 2020

16 Finance income

(Rs. in millions)
31-Mar-20

I

Interest income
- On bank deposits 1.50

1.50

17 Other expenses
(Rs. in millions)

31-Mar-20
Legal and professional fees (includes payment to auditor)* | .87
Printing and stationery 0.08
1.95

Payment to auditor *
(Rs. in millions)

31-Mar-20
As auditor:
Statutory audit fee 0.10
{h 10
18 Finance costs
(Rs. in millions)
31-Mar-20
Interest
-On NCD 304.20
- On inter-corporate deposits 0.10
Less: Transferred 1o CWIP (302.70)
Total finance costs 1.60
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ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U45309KA2019PTC124570

Motes to the financial statements for the period from May 23, 2019 to March 31, 2020

19  Related party transactions

a) The following table provides the name of the related party and

Ultimate Holding Company
Virtuous Retail South Asia Pre Lid, Singapore

Holding Company
Monbus Holdings Pre. Lid

Fellow Subsidiaries
Sugam Vanijya Holdings Private Limited
North Delli Metro. Mall Private Limited
Hamir Real Estate Private Limited
Kleio Developers Private Limited
Dhanlaxmi Infrastructure Private Limited
Virtuous Retail Property Services LLP
Alena Ventures Limited (formerly known as TRIL Amritsar Projects Limited)

Thales Ventures Limited (formerly known as TRIF Real Estate & Development Limited)
Robusta Holdings Pte Lid

b) Details of the transactions with the related parties:

the nature of its relationship with the Company:

(Rs. in millions)

Particulars

31-Mar-20
I_____—l_____

L. Transactions with related parties

Inter corporate deposits given to the related party
Kleio Developers Private Limited

Inter corporate deposits received by the related party
Sugam Vanijya Holdings Private Limited

Inter corporate deposits repaid to the related party
Sugam Vanijya Holdings Private Limited

Investments

Thales Ventures Limited (formerly known as TRIF Real Estate & Development Limited)
Alena Ventures Limited (formerly known as TRIL Amritsar Projects Limited)

Interest paid on Inter corporate deposits repaid to the related party
Sugam Vanijya Holdings Private Limited

¢) Details of balances receivable from and payable to related parties are as follows:

107.50

25.00

25.00

0.00
0.00

0.10

(Rs. in millions)

Particulars

J1-Mar-20

ﬂ

L. Balances receivable from and payable to related parties

Inter-corporate deposit
Kleio Developers Private Limited

Investments
Thales Ventures Limited (formerly known as TRIF Real Estate & Development Limited)
Alena Ventures Limited (formly known as TRIL Amnitsar Projects Limiled)

Trade payables
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ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U45309KA2019PTC124570
Notes to the financial statements for the period from May 23, 2019 to March 31, 2020

20

21

12

Segment Information

The Company is engaged in the business of real estate development w.r.t mall development and management. As such, the Company
operates in single business and geographical segment and hence disclosing information as per requirements of Ind AS 108 "Operating
Segments” 1s not required

Earnings per share |'EPS']

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year altributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of
Equity shares outstanding during the year

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders (after adjusting for interest on the convertible
debentures) by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity
shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity Shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations.
(Rs. in millions)

Particulars

# e # —
Profit afier tax attributable to equity shareholders (2.05)
Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each outstanding during the period used in 51,804,142
calculating basic and diluted EPS

(0.00)

EPS

Commitments and contingencies

a. Commitments
(Rs. in millions)

Particulars 31-Mar-20
Capital commitments

The estimated amount of contracts, net of advances remaining to be executed on
capital account and not provided for

b. Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for)

The Company does not have any pending resolution of the arbitration/ appellate proceedings .
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ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U4S5309KA2019PTC124570

Notes to the financial statements for the period from May 23, 2019 to March 31, 2020

23  Fair value measurements

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories is as follows:

(Rs. in millions)
Particulars 31-Mar-20
At Cost | Fair value At
through | Amortised
profit or Cost
loss
Financial assets
Investments - 0.00 -
Cash and cash equivalents - 14.72
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents - - 118.00
Loans . - 107.50
Other financials assets i . 0.38
Total - 0.00 240.60
Financial liabilities
Borrowings . - 6,510.00
Trade payables g . B o
Other financial habilites - . 304 20
Total - - 6,817.97
Fair value hierarchy
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities
(Rs. in millions)
Particulars 31-Mar-20
Carrying _Fair value
_amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Measured at cost amortised cost fair
value through profit and loss
Investments carried at fair value through 0.00 - - 0.00
profit and loss
Trade receivables = - i "
Cash and cash equivalents 14.72 - - 14.72
Bank balance other than cash and cash 118.00 - - 118.00
eguivalents
Loans 107.50 - - 107.50
Other financials assets 0.38 - - 0.38
240.60 - - 240.60
Assets for which fair value are
disclosed
Investment properties 6,848.00 - -
6,.848.00 - - -
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
Borrowings 6,510.00 - - 6,510.00
Trade payables 3.77 - - 3.77
Other financial liabiliues 304.20 - - 304,20
6,817.97 - - 6,817.97

Noves:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within level | thal are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability,

There have been no transfers between the levels during the period.

Financial instruments carried at amortised cost such as trade receivables, loans , other financial assets, borrowings, trade payables and other

financial liabilities are considered 1o be same as their fair values, due to short term nature.

For financial assets & liabilities that are measured al fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values
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ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U45309KA2019PTC124570

Notes to the financial statements for the period from May 23, 2019 to March 31, 2020

24  Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance and support Company's operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and refundable deposits that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the
management of these risks. The Company’s senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on
financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The financial risk committee
provides assurance to the Company’s senior managemeni that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the

Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks.
which are summanised below.

A Market risk

Market nisk 1s the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and other price risk. such as equity price risk and
commaodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans, borrowings and security deposits.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2020. The sensitivity analyses have been
prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt are all constant.

The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post retirement
obligations and provisions.

The below assumption has been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based
on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2020,

a. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the nsk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in

market interest rates. The Company's exposure 1o the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's
long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings.
The Company does not enter into any interest rate swaps.

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and
borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on
floating rate borrowings, as follows:

(Rs. in millions)

Increase/ Effect on
decrease in profit before
iﬂﬂ'lﬁl [ale tax

March 31, 2020
i 1%
INR -1%
-
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ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U45309KA2019PTC124570

Notes to the financial statements for the period from May 23, 2019 to March 31, 2020

B Credit risk

Credit nisk 1s the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading
to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
investing activities (short term bank deposits). Credit appraisal is performed by the management before lease agreements are

entered into with customers. The risk is also mitigated due to customers placing significant amount of security deposits for
lease and fit-out rentals

Credit nsk from balances with banks is managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance with the Company’s
policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each
counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company's Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be
updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Company's Finance Committee. The limits are set to minimise the
concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through a counterparty’s potential failure to make payments. The

Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement of financial position at March 31, 2020 is the
Carrying amounts,

C Liquidity risk

The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
deposits and loans.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted
payments:
(Rs. in millions)
Dtol 1toS5 years > 5 years Total
year
Year ended March 31, 2020

Borrowings - - 6,510.00 6,510.00
Trade payables 3.77 - - 3.77
Other financial liabilities 0.49 - 304.20 304.69

4.26 - 6,814.20 6,818.46
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ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U45309KA2019PTC124570
Notes to the financial statements for the period from May 23, 2019 to March 31, 2020

15 Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity

reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to
maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements
of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by
total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables,
less cash and cash equivalents
(Rs. in millions)
31-Mar-20

Borrowings (long-term and short-term, including current maturities of long term 6,510

borrowings) (Note 12)

Trade payables (Note 14) 3.77

Other payables (current and non-current, excluding current maturities of long term 304.69

borrowings) (Note 14 )

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 9) (14.72)
Net debt 6,803.74

Equity share capital 600.01

Other equity (2.05)
Total capital 507 .96

Capital and net debt 7,401.70

(Gearing ratio Ll

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the
financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2020.
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Notes to the financial statements for the period from May 23, 2019 to March 31, 2020

16

27

Standards issued but not effective

There were no standards issued but not effective at the time of issuance of the Company’s financial statements, hence the disclosure

1s not applicable

Disclosures required under section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

(Hs. in millions)

Particulars

31-Mar-20

(1) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of accounting year
(1) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year

(1) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond appointed
day duning each accounting year

(1v) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but

beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year

(v1) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined 1o the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of informaton

collected by the management.

Transfer pricing

As per the transfer prnicing rules prescribed under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the Company is examining the domestic and
international transactions and documentation in respect thereof to ensure compliance with the said rules. The management does not

anticipate any material adjustment with regard to the transactions involved.

This space is intentionally left blank
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ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U45309KA2019PTC124570
Notes to the financial statements for the period from May 23, 2019 to March 31, 2020

29 World Health Organisation (WHO) declared outbreak of Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) a global pandemic on March |1, 2020
Consequent to this, Government of India declared lockdown on March 23, 2020 and the Company suspended the operations in all
ongoing projects in compliance with the lockdown instructions issued by the Central and State Governments. COVID-19 has
impacted the normal business operations of the Company by way of interruption in Project execution, supply chain disruption,
unavailability of personnel, closure of hospitality facilities and retail spaces during the lock-down period,

The Company's management has considered the possible effects that may result from the COVID-19 pandemic on the carrying value
of assets [including investment property, capital work in progress, loans and reccivables]. In developing the assumptions relating to
the possible future uncertainties in the economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of
these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information to assess the expected future performance of the
Company. The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on the current estimates, the Company
expects that the carrying amount of these assets, as reflected in the balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, are fully recoverable. The
management has also estimated the future cash flows with the possible effects that may result from the COVID-19 pandemic and does
not foresee any adverse impact on realising its assets and in meeting its liabilities as and when they fall due. The actual impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements.

The Central and State Governments have initiated steps to lift the lockdown and the Company will adhere to the same as it resumes
its activities. Retail spaces and hospitality facility have resumed operations. The Company will continue to closely observe the

evolving scenario and take into account any future developments arising out of the same.

There is no impact on the Company due to COVID-19.

As per our report of even date
For Chatterjee & Chatterjee For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

ICAI firm registration number: 001109C _

+

A

Gaurav Agrawal AparnalGoel Amit Bhushan
Partner Direc Director
Membership No.: 403788 DIN: 00142961 DIN: 01910476
Place: New Delhi : Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date - July 31, 2020 Date : July 31, 2020 Date : July 31, 2020
Barsha Agarwa:
Company Secretary
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ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

Email: vim_compliance@virtuousretail.com; Ph: 080-67234313

The Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 1% Annual Report on the business and
operations of the Company and the accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020.

1. Financial Summary or Highlights/Performance of the Company

The Company’s financial performance for the year under review are given hereunder:
(All amounts in Millions Indian Rs.)

For the period from
PARTICULARS May 23, 2019 to

March 31, 2020
Net Sales /Income from Operations 0
Other Income 1.50
Total Income 1.50
Total Expenses 3.55
Profit (Loss) before Tax (2.U5)
Less: Deferred Tax 0
Net Profit/ Loss after Tax (2.05)
EPS (Basic) 0
EPS (Diluted) 0

2. Business update (State of Company’ s Affair)

The Company is engaged in the development and construction of mixed-use real estate

projects. The following works have been initiated by the Company for its current project in
Thane:

Design Status
I. Architecture: 1U0% masterplan and 5U0% concept drawings have been completed by
ITong Kong-based principal architect, Lead8

Construction Status
1. Constiuction has nol coimmnenced; latpeling 2021 conmnencement subject o ohlaining

required statutory approvals

3. Change in Business of the Company

During the period from May 23, 2019 to March 31, 2020, there was no change in the business
of the Company.

4. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the Financial Position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the Financial Year of the Company
to which the Financial Statements relate and the date of the report

There have been no changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the
company which have occurred between 315 March, 2020 and the date of the report.
) —

Regd. Office: 76, 6th Cross, Malleshwaram, Bengaluru, Karijataka — 560003
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ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

Email: vim_compliance@virtuousretail.com; Ph: 080-67234313

5. Global health pandemic¢ from COVID-19

World Health Organization (WHO) declared outbreak of Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) a
global pandemic on March 11, 2020. Consequent to this, Government of India declared
lockdown on March 23, 2020 and the Company suspended the operations in all ongoing
projects in compliance with the lockdown instructions issued by the Central and State
Governments. COVID-19 has impacted the normal business operations of the Company by
way of interruption in Project execution, supply chain disruption, unavailability of personnel,
closure of hospitality facilities and retail spaces during the lock-down period.

The Company’s management has considered the possible effects that may result from the
COVID-19 pandemic on the carrying value of assets [including investment property, capital
work in progress, loans and receivables]. In developing the assumptions relating to the
possible future uncertainties in the economic conditions because of this pandemic, the
Company, as at the date of approval of these financial statements has used internal and
external sources of information to assess the expected future performance of the Company.
The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on the
current estimates, the Company expects that the carrying amount of these assets, as reflected
in the balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, are fully recoverable. The management has also
estimated the future cash flows with the possible effects that may result from the COVID-19
pandemic and does not foresee any adverse impact on realizing its assets and in meeting its
liabilities as and when they fall due. The actual impact of the COVID-19 pandemic may be
different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements.

The Central and State Governments have initiated steps to lift the lockdown and the
Company will adhere to the same as it resumes its activities. Retail spaces and hospitality
facility have resumed operations. The Company will continue to closely observe the evolving
scenario and take into account any future developments arising out of the same.

6. Change in Share Capital & Debenture/ Bonds of the Company

During the period from May 23, 2019 to March 31, 2020, the Company has:

1. Increased the authorised capital of the Company from Rs. 10,000 to Rs.
60,00,10,000

2. Issued 6,00,00,000 equity Share @Rs. 10 each amounting to Rs. 60,00,00,000

3. Issued 2410 redeemable, unsecured unlisted non-convertible Debentures of INR
2,41,00,00,000 as on 21 November, 2019.

4. Issued 4100 redeemable, unsecured unlisted non-convertible Debentures of INR
4,10,00,00,000 as on 06" December, 2019.

7. Dividend
Due to Loss the Board of Directors do not recommend any dividend on the equity shares for

the period from May 23, 2019 to March 31, 2020.

Regd. Office: 76, 6th Cross, Malleshwaram, Bengaluru, Karnataka — ﬁoom
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ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

Email: vrm_compliance@virtuousretail.com; Ph: 080-67234313

. Reserves

The Company has incurred loss, so no amount has been transferred to reserve.

. Meetings of Board of Directors

Thirteen (13) meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the period from 23™ May,
2019 to 31 March, 2020.

Extract of the Annual Return

The extract of Annual Return in MGT-9 for the current financial year pursuant to the
provisions of Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 is attached in Annexure — I.

Internal Financial Control

The Company has in place proper and adequate internal financial control.

Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future

No significant and material orders passed by the regulators/courts/tribunals, which have
impact on the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

Details of holding/subsidiarv/joint ventures/associate companies

M/s Moribus Holdings Pte. Limited is the holding Company. The Company doesn’t have any
Subsidiary, associate and joint venture Company.

Deposits

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review.

Statutory Auditor

M/s V Kishore & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 0135738S), first
auditors of the Company have expressed their unwillingness to continue as the statutory
auditors of the Company. Due to casual vacancy caused it is recommended that M/s.
Chatterjee & Chatterjee, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration Number 001109C),
having address at A-1, Commercial Centre, Nimari Colony, Ashok Vihar, Phase Iv, New
Delhi - 110052, India, be appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company in the Board
Meeting held on 21% March, 2020 in place of M/s V Kishore & Associates. As per the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Extra Ordinary General Meeting was held
on 21% March, 2020 for the appointment of M/s. Chatterjee & Chatterjee, Chartered
Accountants, as the statutory auditors of the Company, for the period from May 23, 2019 to

March 31, 2020.
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Email: vrm_compliance@virtuousretail.com; Ph: 080-67234313

15. Secretarial Auditor

The Board appointed M/s Legal Monk Advisory Private Limited, to conduct Secretarial
Audit for the financial year 2019-20. The Secretarial Audit Report for the period from May
23,2019 to March 31, 2020 is annexed herewith as Annexure — 11

The Secretarial Audit Report issued by the Statutory Auditors of the Company, M/s Legal
Monk Advisory Private Limited, Secretarial Audit, contains the below observations on the
Audit Report provided on which the Board’s representation is as follows:

SL. Observation Explanation
No.

except in respect of appointment of Key | The applicability of Section 203 of
Managerial Personnel under the provisions | the Companies Act, 2013 arose on
of Section 203 the date of listing of Debentures
dated 10th December, 2019.

The Company is completing the
hiring of a candidate with required
knowledge, skill, qualification to
become the Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company. Due to
reasons outside of the control of
the Company, specifically COVID-
19 and associated lockdown, the
hiring process has been prolonged
Jor longer than anticipated.

16. Auditors’ Koport

There were no qualifications as suchi i the eponls issued by (ie Statutory Audiwrs, which
ucd (v be addiessed i e Directuis™ Repuii.

17. Secretarial Standagrds

The Company complies with all applicable secretarial standards issued by Institute of
Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) on Meeting of the Board as well as General Meeting.

18. Consorvation of cnergy, tochnology absorption and forcign exchange easuings and
outgo

a. Conservation of Energy
The Company’s operations are not energy-intensive and as such involve low energy
consumption. However, adequate measures have been taken to conserve the consumption of

energy. A %l——
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Email: vrm_compliance@virtuousretail.com; Ph: 080-67234313

Technology Absorption
Operations of the company do not involve any kind of special technology and there was no
expenditure on research & development during this financial year. However, your company

continues to upgrade its technology (computer technology and telecom infrastructure) in
ensuring it is connected with its clients across the globe.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo

The Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo for the period from May 23, 2019 to March 31,
2020 is as follows:

Particulars 315 March, 2020

(INR in million)

Foreign Exchange Earnings | Nil

Foreign Exchange Outgo Nil

. Directors

. Changes in Directors and Kev Managerial Personnel

As on date the following are the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:

1) Mr. Amit Bhushan, Director
2) Mrs. Aparna Goel, Director
3) Ms. Barsha Agarwal, Company Secretary

During the period under review Mr. Ramachandcran Ramamurthy, Additional Director and
Mr. Shunkor Viewanuthun, Additional Direclor revigned from the Compuny on 20
Sieptember, 2019, Mr. Amit Bhushan and Mr, Meeraj Kumar were appointed as additional
Director w.c.f. 17" Scptember, 2019.

During the current financial year, Mr. Neeraj Kumar, Directors has resigned and Mrs. Aparna
Goel has been appointed w.e.f. 01 April, 2020 and Ms. Barsha Agarwal was appointed as
Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. 01% April, 2020.

Disclosure under the sexual harassment of women at workplace (prevention,
prohibition and redressal) Act, 2013

There was no women employee at workplace for the period from May 23, 2019 to March 31,

2020.
Il -
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Email: vrm_compliance@virtuousretail.com; Ph: 080-67234313

21. Particulars of loans, guarantees, securities or investments under section 186

Particulars of loans given, guarantees given and securities provided along with the purpose
for which the loan or guarantee or security is proposed to be utilized by the recipient are
provided in the financial statement Nil.

The Company has given Intercorporate Deposit to Kleio Developers Private Limited for Rs.

107.50 million for which approval from shareholders under section 186 of the Companies Act
has been taken on 02" December, 2019.

22. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties

There was no contract or arrangements made with related parties as defined under Section
188 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review.

23. Risk Management Policy

The Directors do not detect any element of risk to the business of the Company as on date.

24. Disclosure for Providing Vigil Mechanism

The Company has established a vigil mechanism and overseas the genuine concerns
expressed by the employees and other Directors. The Company has also provided adequate
safeguards against victimization of employees and Directors who express their concerns. The
Company has also provided direct access to one of the directors authorized by the Board, on
reporting issues concerning the interests of employees and the Company.

25. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board
hereby submit its responsibility Statement: —

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of

the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the loss of the
company for that period;

(¢) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets
of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.
Internal financial control means the policies and procedures adopted by the Company for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business including adherence to ﬁompany’s %ﬁiy—ﬂ
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policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information.

(f) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

26. Other Statutory Particulars

Provisions under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder in respect of the

following matters do not apply to the company.

i. Declaration by an Independent Director(s) and re- appointment, if any

ii. Investor Education and Protection Fund

iil. Formal Annual Evaluation of Board of Directors

iv. Maintenance of cost records

v. Constitution of Audit Committee

vi. Constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

vii. Policy relating to appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration,
Directors’ qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors and other
related matters

viii. Corporate Governance Certificate

ix. Managerial Remuneration

x. Corporate Social Responsibility

xi. Internal Auditor

27. Acknowledgements

Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers, business associates,
consultants, and various Government Authorities for their continued support extended to your
Companies activities during the year under review. Your Directors also acknowledges
gratefully the shareholders for their support and confidence reposed in your Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Elpis Ventures Private Irimitcd

fﬁ{ﬁk A YA ,(7 |

Amit Bhushan parna Goel

Director irector

DIN - 01910476 DIN - 00142961
Address: A-2/403, Printer Apartments, Address: W-67, Greater
Sector-13, Rohini, New Delhi 110085 Kailash-2, South Delhi - 110048

Place: New Delhi
Date: 31% July, 2020
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Email: vim_compliance@virtuousretail.com; Ph: 080-67234313

ANNEXURE 1
Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.20

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i |[CIN | U45309KA2019PTC124570
| |
ii. Regislration Date | | £ 23/05/2019
ii. | Name of the Company . Elpis Ventures Private Limited

iv._!‘Cétego‘ry y Sﬁb—‘Cé'teg'o}y of the Cém_panil limited by Shares/ Non-Govt. |

j Company Company
'v. | Address of the Regféiered office and | 76‘,\6“[h"('3_1"<;és, Malleshwaram, Bé;lgalére KA
contact details 560003
vi. | Whether listed company Yes (Non-Convertible Debentures onlf)

vii. | Name, Address and Contact details of | I;lteérated Enterprises (]hd'iér\)‘ Lifr‘li\'tecqi,‘ )

| Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any ' 3
'No. 30, Ramana Residency, 4™ Floor,

' Sampige Road, Malleshwaram, Bangalore —
| 560003, Karnataka

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company
shall be stated: -

Sr. ;Name and Descriptidn of main iNIC Code of % to total turnover of the

No. Iproducts / services

ithe Product/ company

i '| service

f I lgfreal estate developiﬁeht_ w.rt I 636810 " 100 % N
| mall development and | :

| management I

(A -

Regd. Office: 76, 6th Cross, Malleshwaram, Bengaluru, Karnataka — 560003

CIN: U45309KA2019PTC124570
8




ELPIS VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

Email: vim_compliance@virtuousretail.com; Ph: 080-67234313

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

|Sr. | Name and Address| CIN/GLN  Holding/ | % of | Applicable |
iNo. - of the Company Subsidiary | shares |
. | Section
| held ;
' /Associate
_— | | | | -
1. | Moribus Holdings Pte | -- | Holding 1 99.99% | 2(46)
.z - Limited | Company '

Add: 10, Marina
' Boulevard, #16-3,
- Marina Bay Financial
' Centre, Singapore —
1 081983

1V. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of

Total Equity)
A) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of 'No. of Shares held at the | No. of Shares held at thec end % |
3  beginning of the year ' of the year EChange !
:|Shareholders | | during
: | the
! | year

Demat Physi Total % of [Demat |PhysicTotal % of
: I ’

! cal | Total | al -% Total
| Shares | | Shares
" A.Promoter h :
1) Indian Nl Nil | Nl Nil |Nil | Nil |Nil Nil N
R (NN SN (R S S S S N
a) Individual/ ~ Nil 1000 1000 | 100 |Nil Nl | Nil Nil  [100 |
 HUF | I S S | |
b) Central Govt | Nil Nil Nl Nil[Nil o Nil [ Nil ‘Nil NIl
c) State Govt(s) | Nil  Nil 'Nil 'Nil |Nil  Nil Nl |Nil |Nil
d)BodiesCorp  Nil  |Nil Nl Nil [Nl 01 01  0.000 | 100
" ; | 1 ; | 0001
| | | | | | | %
R — | I N I | :
Regd. Office: 76, 6th Cross, Malleshwaram, Bengaluru, Karnataka — 560003
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e)Banks/FI | Nil Nil | Nil Nl Nil Nil | Nil ' Nil Nl
f) AnyOther Nl Nl Nii|Nil | Nil Nil | Nil Nil Nl
| Sub-total(A)(1): | Nil Nil | Nil | Nil Nil Nil | Nil | Nil | Nil
Z_ . | ' |
2) Foreign 'Nil (Nl Nil NIl Nl Nl Nil | Nil INil
) NRIs- 'Nil Nil | Nil Nil | Nil Nl | Nil |Nil | Nil
| Individuals | . . |_
h) Other- Nil [ Nil [ Nil Nil | Nil Nil | Nil CNil - Nil
' Individuals | - ; | .
') BodiesCorp. Nil  Nil |Nil  Nil 60000 Nil |600,009 99.99 100

| | | | 1,999 199 99999

| | | | %99% %
i) Banks / FI Nl NIl N NIl Nl Nl Nl NIl Nil
k) Any Other....  Nil Nil /Nl | Nil | Nil Nil  Nil 'Nil | Nil
‘Sub-total (A)2): Nil  |Nil [Nl Nl 60000 Nil 600009 99.99 100
E ? ; . ,999 99 99999 |

| | 99% |
| , | | NN I
| B. Public 'Nil Nl Nil | Nil Nl Nil | Nil 'Nil [ Nil
 Sharcholding | [N I A (N
1. Institutions  'Nil  Nil Nil  Nil Nil | Nil |Nil I Nil | Nil
) Mutal Funds | Nil  Nil Nl |Nil Nl Nil | Nil 'Nil | Nil
b) Banks / FI Nl Nl Nil Nil Nl [Nl [Nl Nil | Nil
¢) Central Govt | Nil Nil Nl Nl IN@ NNl NIl Nl
d) State Govt(s) | Nil  Nil Nl Nl Nl Nl |Nil INil | Nil
. | | | I I SR N
€) Venture Capital |[Nil ~ |Nil Nl | Nil | Nil Nil | Nil (Nil | Nil
f) Insurance | Nil Nil Nl Nl NIl Nl §Ni1 |Nil | Nil
| Companies ' ; ; i : : : |
) Flis 'Nil | Nil [Nl [Nil o [Nil [ Nil [ Nil NIl | Nl
h) Foreign 'Nil Nil (Nil [Nil [Nil | Nil | Nil 'Nil | Nil
Venture | i | ' ' -; |

Capital Funds | | ' l. ! i |

Regd. Office: 76, 6th Cross, Malleshwaram, Bengaturu, Karnataka — 560003
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i) Others Nil

. (specify) 1
Sub-total (B)(1) | Nil

2.Non- | Nil

t_ Institutions

la) Bodies Corp. | Nil
' (i) Indian '
. (it) Overseas - Nil

b) Individuals | Nil

()  Individual

| shareholders '

' holding nominal |

' share capital upto
Rs. 1 lakh |

| () Individual
' shareholders _
' holding nominal

share capital in |
;excess of Rs 1
| lakh

|

Nil

Others(Specify) | Nil

Sub-total (B)(2) | Nil

ETotal - Public I Nil
Shareholding
(B)y=B)(1)+
B)2)

E-C-._S'Ba'reg held by | Nil
 Custodian for |
| GDRs & ADRs

| |
(A+B+C)

" Grand Total | Nil

R T
Nil | Nil

[Nl | Nil
Nl | Nil
CNil | Nil
Nil | Nil
Nil | Nil

NN

Nil | Nil
Nil "Nil
|
|
T

' Nil

|

‘Nil

| Nil

- Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nl

Nil

INil

11000 1000 | 100

 Nil

| Nil

| Nil

: Nil

' Nil

Nil

Nl
| Nil

' Nil

Nil

i

b

| Nil

Nil

Nil

|
3

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nl

' Nil

Nil

16,0000 01

1,999

H

|
' Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

| Nil

Nil

Nil

' Nil

| Nil

Nil

|
|
!
E
i

1 6,00,01,0 | 100

00

—
NI

Nil
Nil

' Nil

Nil

Nil

| Nil

e
|

Nl

Nl

' Nil
| Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil
' Nil

| Nil

ONil

, !
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B) Shareholding _of !’romoters

ISr., %Sh archolder’s
INo Name

. Ramachanderan

Ramamurthy

Add: Flat TF
314, MS Royal,
2nd  Main,2™
Cross, Arekere,
BG
Bengaluru
. 560076

Shankar
- Viswanathan

Road, |

500

éShareholding
beginning of the year
No. of s of oot
‘Shares étota! Shares
Shares  Pledged
of the /
compan encumb
y ered to
total
shares
' 500 50 | Nil
50 |Nil

' Add: H NO 22-

1202 Rk Nagar
Malkajgiri
Hyderabad
500047

the year
No. of % of ;r%of TI% change
Shares  jtotal Shares ;in
‘Shares of Pledged ishareholdi
tthe i ng during
company encumb the year
fered to
| itotal '
| shares |
Nil 'Nil  [Nil 100
Nil [Nl [Nl | Nil

at  the ‘Shareholding at the end of |
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3., Moribus

Holdings Pie
Limited

Add: 10, Marina

Boulevard, #16-

'3, Marina Bay
' Financial Centre,

Singapore -

018983

Dhanlaxmi
Infrastructure

. Private Limited

Add: VR Surat |

F. P. 29 Rundh:

Village

- Road Magdalla

' Surat

395007
Gujarat018983

Total

Dumas

Nil Nil

'Nil  Nil

1000 | 100% | --

60,000,9 | 99.99% | Nil 100
99 ; -
| _
01 10.01%  Nil 100 |
! !
16000100 | 100%  Nil 1100
-0 :

C) Change in Promoters’ Sharcholding (please specify, if there is no change)

o Promoter

|

INo (;f shafeé
|

At the beginning of the | Nil

year
i

% of total No.

Shareholding of each 'Shareholdings at  the Cumulative Shareholding |
beginning of the year '

%during the year '

of % of total

shares  of ishares shares of the |
the company ,
\company | ‘
[E— ! R = ;
Nil Nil Nil

f

Regd. Office: 76, 6th Cross, Malleshwaram, Bengaluru, Karnataka — #0(}03
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1.

.

3.

| Ramachanderan
Ramamurthy

ETransfer of share

- 23/09/2019

" Shankar Viswanathan
(Transfer —23/09/2019

" Moribus

Pte |

=

Hbldings
Limited
Transfer -  23/09/2019 |
(999share)
Allotment — 10/12/2019
- (6,00,00,000)
' Dhanlaxmi  Infrastructure

Private Limited

| Transfer — 23/09/2019 (01 |

| share)

500 50 | Nil | Nil
1 500 50 Nl ' Nil
| |
Nil Nil 160,000,999 | 99.99%
|
Nl Nil 01 01
. 100% 60001000  100%
| |

D) Sharcholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders: (Other than Directors, Promoters
and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sr.
No

Sharcholding  of

'Promoter

|

|
I
H
|
|
i
i |
|

each 'iéhareholdings

At the beginning of the | Nil

the (Cumulative Silareholdihg
during the year

at
beginning of the year

No.ofshares (% of total No.  of (% of total

shares  of |shares Eshares of |
the i the '
lcompany lcompany
| Nil il NIl

1 i

Regd. Office: 76, 6th Cross, Malleshwaram, Bengaluru, Karnataka — Sd 003
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Date wise Increase /| Nil - Nil Nl
Decrease in  Promoters |
Shareholding during  the
iyear specifying the reasons
ifor increase / decrease (e.g. |
\allotment / transfer / bonus/ |
isweat equity etc.)

1

‘At the End of the year ~Nil Nil ' Nil

B) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Nil

Nil

Sr fSh.areholding of each Shareholdings at the :Cumulative Shéreholding

No Promoter beginning of the year gduring the year
No. of shares % of total No. of I% of total

shares of shares éshares of |
the the ’;
company company

At the beginning of the Nil Nil Nil ' Nil

- | | |

Date wise Increase /| Nil Nil Nil Nil

i | | |

Decrease in  Promoters | ! ' |

§Shareholding during the

%year specifying the reasons |

ifor increase / decrease (e.g. |

allotment / transfer / bonus/ |

isweat equity etc.) ' , i

At the End of theyear | Nil | Nil Nl [Nl

C) INDEBTEDNESS (Amount in Millions)

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for

payment (in million)

Secured Loans
Particulars excluding
deposits

Loan Deposits

Unsecured Total
Indebtness

Indebtedness at the
beginning of the

Regd. Office: 76, 6th Cross, Malleshwaram, Bengaluru, Karnataka — 560003
CIN: U45309KA2019PTC124570
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financial year

i) Principal Amount - - - -
ii) Interest due but not . - -

paid

iii) Interest accrued

but not paid i j ] i
Total (i + ii + iii) - - - -
Change in

Indebtedness  during
the financial year

- Addition . 6510 . 6510
B Reduction o o o
Net Change _ 6510 - 6510

Indebtedness at the
end of the financial

year

i) Principal Amount - 6510 - 6510
ii) Interest due but not | - = = :

paid

111). Interest accrued | - 304.20 = 304.20
but not due

Total (i + ii + iii) - 6814.20 - 6814.20

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager - Nil

SIL Particulars of Rémunérétion | Name o of i Total
No. ! - MD/WTD/

| . Manager Amount
1. | Grosssalary -

(a) Salary as per provisions |
contained in section 17(1) of the

Income-tax Act, i
NIT. | NIL

i | 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s

17(2) Income-tax Act,

Regd. Office: 76, 6th Cross, Malleshwaram, Bengaluru, Karnataka - 560003

CIN: U45309KA2019PTC124570 %
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1961
|

(¢) Profits in lieu of salary under
| section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

2. | Stock Option
|
13 Swea_tfquity :
4. i Commission .

- as % of profit

- others, specify... (Salary)

5. Others, please specify - ]

26 — (A) = s —— ST . 1 NiL

i Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other directors: Nil

'Sl. ' Particulars of Remuneration Total

| Name of
No. | Di
_ Directors Amount i

Indepen.deht- Directors

- Fee for attending board committee |
' meetings

- Commission

- - Others, please specify ‘

Other Non-Executive Directors | |

- Fee for attending board committee !
meetings

- Commission

| |
- ' Others, please specify (Remuneration ' -
_ p pecity ( ) Nil ‘Nil g_

CIN: U45309KA2019PTC124570
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! Total (2)
' Total (B)=(1+2)

" Total Mariagefial Remuneration

Overall Ceiliﬁg as per the Act

' Nil

Nil
| Nil

Nil

C. Remuneration to Key Ma_n.a.gerial Personnel Other T_han MD /Manaﬁer /WTI‘D “

Sl

mno.

—

Particulars of

Remuneration

CEO

5 * Gross salary Nil

| (a) Salary as per
. provisions contained in

section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

- (b) Value of perquisites
/s

17(2) Income-tax

. Act, 1961

- (¢) Profits in lieu of salary
. under section

17(3) Income-tax

Act, 1961

Btock Option NIl
T éWéat Liquity ' Nil
' Commission Nl

- as % of profit

- others, specify...

| Others, please specify Nil

CS

Nil

il
|
| Nil

Nil

Nl

. CFO

' Nil

| Nl
Nil

| Nil

-

Total

Nil

N

Nil

| Nil

Nil

Regd. Office: 76, 6th Cross, Malleshwaram, Bengaluru, Karnataka — 560003
CIN: U45309KA2019PTC124570
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6.  Total Nl ' Nil NIl Nil

D) PENALTIES [ PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: Nil

Type ':-Secht'ion of | Brief Details ofu Authority Appeal '%
the description | Penalty/ ' [RD made. If |
! companies | . _ any §
Act : i Pumshmc.nt/ - INCLT/Court] (give I
Compounding details)
fees imposed |
A. Company
" Penalty | Nil | Nil Nl Nil | Nil
:. “Punishment | Nil I Nil Nil NIl - Nil
| | !
‘Compounding | Nil Nl Nil Nil Nil

B. Difectdrs

i

Penalty I Nil 'Nil Nl NIl Nil
Punishment | Nil CNil Nil Nil ~Nil
" Compounding | Nil 'Nil Nl 'Nil Nil

' C. Other O”fficerls in Default

. Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nl ' Nil
. Punishment | Nil Nil | Nil Nil Nil
Componnding, | Nil | Nil Nil Nil ' Nil

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Elpis Ventures Private Limited

A
L
- Apas

Amit Bhushan T Kparna Goel

Director Director

DIN - 01910476 DIN - 00142961
Address: A-2/403, Printer Apartments, Address: W-67, Greater
Sector-13, Rohini, New Delhi 110085 Kailash-2, South Delhi - 110048

Place: New Delhi
Date: 31% July, 2020
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